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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
ANNUAL BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 11, 2024
Meeting Called to Order by Chairperson Vernon D. Burns at 5:00 PM.
Letters and Communications to the Board.
Approval of Board Minutes:
- December 13, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes

Report from Nominating Committee.
Election of Officers:

Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

Secretary

Treasurer

Assistant Secretary

Assistant Treasurer

Member

Designation of Staff:

Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer

Other Appointments:
Counsel: Wiadis Law Firm (U.S.); Gowling Lafleur Henderson LLP (Canada)

Newspapers for Legal Notices: Watertown Daily Times

Banks: Community Bank, N.A.; M&T Bank N.A. (Wilmington Trust), Bank of
America; Key Bank; Tompkins Trust; Watertown Savings Banks; and other
Full-Service Commercial Institutions
Reports
Presentations and Reports:
1. Committee Reports
a) Finance Committee Report
2. Reports:
a) Income/Expense Report
b) Bridge Traffic Report
¢) Airport Activity Report
d) Port Activity Report
e) Economic Development Report, Including Building Occupancy

Unfinished Business.

Business ltems.



A. General Administration

1. Committee Assignments
2. Approval of State-Mandated Officer Appointments
3. Acceptance of 2022 — 2023 Audits

B. Oagdensburg-Prescott International Bridge

1. None

C. Commerce Park

1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with Frank Ralph’s, Inc.

D. Oagdensburg International Airport

1. None

E. Port of Ogdensburg

1. None.

F. Other Such Matters

IX. Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff.

X. Next Meeting Dates:

February 8, 2024
March 14, 2024
April 11, 2024

May 9, 2024

June 13, 2024

July 11, 2024
August 8, 2024
September 12, 2024
October 10, 2024
November 14, 2024
December 12, 2024

XI. Adjournment

Dated: January 8, 2022

Board of Directors:

Mr. Vernon D. “Sam” Burns, Chairperson
Ms. Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice Chair

Mr. Christopher B. T. Coffin, Treasurer
Mr. David King, Secretary

Ms. Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Member
Ms. Nicole Terminelli, Member

Ms. Toni Kennedy, Member

Staff:

Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday

5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM
5:00 PM

Steven J. Lawrence
Executive Director

Mr. Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Ms. Patricia A. Nisco, CFO

Mr. Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
Mr. James D. Chase, Director of Operations
Mr. Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

Press:

(Proposed)
(Proposed)
(Proposed)
(Proposed)
(Proposed)
(Proposed)
(Proposed)
Proposed)
Proposed)
Proposed)

(
(
(
(Proposed)

Mr. Andy Gardner, WDT

Ms. Monica Sandreczki, North. Country Public Radio

Ms. Dawn Merz, Radio Station YES FM

WWNY TV-7

Mr. Jimmy Lawton, Narth Country Now
Mr. Jim Leven, Community Broadcasters
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as of November 30, 2023

Current Assets:
Cash - Checking Accounts
Cash - Reserves & Other Restricted Accounts
Cash - Security Deposits
Accounts Receivable - Regular
Accounts Receivable - AEAS
Grants Receivable
Investments
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:
Land & Land Improvements
Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures
Signage
Bond Issuance Costs - 2017 Series
Total Fixed Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Other Assets:
Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Regular
Accounts Payable - AEAS/Contour
Accounts Payable - NYS Retirement
Accounts Payable - All Project A/P
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities

Other General Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Portion of Long Term Debt
Total Long Term Liabilities

Capital

TOTAL LIABILITIES

137,466
7,694,710
185,762
199,657
970,053
7,706

80,316
67,369

9,343,039

$

46,674,118
108,711,370
8,813,510
2,018,770
142,508
181,132
178,968
166,720,374

$

88,543,681

$

1,323,916

6,582,091

105,792,727

581,049
406,900

801,792
875,946
21,739,331

24,405,018

590,476

8,587,916

8,587,916

72,209,317

105,792,727



Restricted Accounts - Top 5 Bank Accounts
Consolidated Reserve Fund - CBNA

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Wilmington Trust
Tompkins Trust Security Reserve Deposit
M&T Deposit - Bond Payable Reserve Funds
PFC Account

8 Additional Restricted Bank Accounts share the balance

Construction in Progress - Top 4 Projects
Airport MASLF

Airport EA PH 1 Drainage & Terminal Area
Airport Revitalization Project

Port - Dock Wall Expansion

6 Additional Projects share the balance

Regular Accounts Payable - Top 5 Vendors
Ascent - World Fuels

Wiadis

Parsons Transportation Group - Bridge Inspection
City of Ogdensburg - 2 LEO & Water/Sewer
Hi-Lite Airfield Service

80+/- Additional Vendors share the balance

6,277,530
527,102
405,586
247,495

55,051

7,612,765

181,945

1,948,025
1,929,916
1,191,423
596,563

5,665,927

916,164

107,819
83,637
56,647
51,688
45,831

345,621

235,428

PAID $75,982 05 DEC 23
PAID $16,659 14 DEC 23

PAID IN FULL 14 DEC 23
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BUILDING OCCUPANCY REPORT
January 11, 2024

Commerce Park Campus

Building

% Occupied

Total SF Available Qccupied Tenant

1

71%

30,000 8,835

7,356 Lincare

3,626 AB Thermal Technology
500 West End Asset Management
424 Miracle Ear / Quality Hearing
211 KDM Analytics
187 Nova Networks
103 LiveFast Motors

8,758 Non-Rentable

100%

15,000 0
10,000 NAC Logistics
4,860 AN Deringer
140 Non-Rentable

23%

20,000 15,490
2,324 Day Automation
1,061 T-Base Communications
850 5G Technologies USA
275 Non-Rentable

100%

30,000 0
28,825 Strader-Ferris
1,175 Non-Rentable

11

100%

40,000 0
20,000 Strader-Ferris
20,000 Frank Ralphs, Inc.

12

100%

11,200 0
8,776 T-Base Communications
2,424 NYS Legal Service

14

100%

24,000 0
23,220 Med-Eng
780 Non-Rentable

86%

170,200 24,325 145,875

Page 1




Bridge Administration Building

Suite % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
BAB 100% 5,316 0
103 536 OBPA Economic Development
104 1,054 SUNYIT
201A 120 Demers, Inc.
201B 140 Cortech/Penski
201C 368 OBPA Executive Director
204 1,689 Stephens Media Group
205 207 Griffith/Lambert
206 182 Griffith/Lambert
207A 170 Dan Dodge
207B 220 Mack Global Engineering
208 158 Barbara Pleet
209 180 Knudsen Systems
210 292 Glenda Jones
100% 5,316 0 5,316
Port of Ogdensburg
Building % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
P2 100% 30,000 0 30,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
P3 100% 20,000 0 19,607 Ingredion - Grain Storage
393 NYOG Office
P4 100% 15,000 0 15,000 Corning
P5 33% 40,000 26,667 13,333 Ingredion - Grain Storage
P6 40% 20,000 12,000 8,000 Port Operations
P8 100% 23,000 0 23,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
Yard 100% 43,560 0 43,560 Steel Beam Storage
80% 191,560 38,667 152,893
Ogdensburg International Airport
Building % Occupied  Total SF  Available Occupied Tenant
Terminal 100% 10,800 0 10,800 TSA/Contour
Hangar 100% 3,672 0 3,672 Used for OGS Equipment Storage
T-Hangar 91% 11,550 1,036
1 1,036 Robertson
2 1,108 Richardson
3 1,036 Proven
4 1,036 Weston
5 1,036 Mueller
6 1,036 Bogardus
7 1,108 Oudheusden
8 1,036 Tate Jr.
9 0 Vacant
10 1,036 Richardson
1,046 Mechanical / Operations Storage
96% 26,022 1,036 24,986

Page 2




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
January 11, 2024, ANNUAL BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item A. General Administration

2. Approval of State-Mandated Officer Appointments

REPORT:

Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority.

Each year, the Authority is required to complete reporting to the State of New York. As part of that
process, it is required by the State that the Authority designated officer appointments to represent the

It is recommended by staff that the following be appointed to the positions as outlined below:

Officer Title

Appointed Officer

Contracting Officer

Executive Director

Liaison, Office of Prevention of Domestic Violence

Executive Director

Internal Control Officer

Board Action of March 4, 2019

Minority Women/Business Enlerprise Officer

CroO

Ethics Officer

Executive Director

Data Coordinator

CFO

Records Access Officer

Senior Administrative Assistant

Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Officer

CFO

Sustainability Coordinator

Director of Operations

New York State requires that these appointments be renewed each year at the annual meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority.

RESOLUTION:

December 31, 2024

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority does hereby
authorize and approve the following appointments for the period January 1, 2024, through

Officer Title

Appointed Officer

Contracting Officer

Executive Director

Liaison, Office of Prevention of Domestic Violence

Executive Director

Internal Control Officer

Board Action of March 4, 2019

Minonity Women/Business Enterprise Officer

CFO

Ethics Officer

Executive Director

Data Coordinator

CFO

Records Access Officer

Senior Administrative Assistant

Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Officer

CFO

Sustainability Coordinator

Director of Operations

INITIATOR/PREPARER: Patricia Nisco/K. Blackburn APPROVED BY:

MOTION PASSED BY:

SECONDED BY:

Unanimous: Yes O

Abstained By:

NoO




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JANUARY 11, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration

3. Acceptance of 2022-2023 Audits

REPORT:

EFPR Group, CPAs prepared the audit reports for fiscal year ending March 31, 2023, for
the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority. EFPR prepared and reviewed both the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Audit, and the Audit of the Airport Schedule of
Passenger Facility Charges with staff after completion.

Staff recommends approval of both audits.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority does
hereby approve and accept the audit reports for the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
and Airport Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2023, as prepared by EFPR Group, CPAs.

INITIATOR/PREPARER: Patricia A. Nisco APPROVED BY: /% ‘{;LM

U4

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes O No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:
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EFPRcroUPCPAS:

6390 Main Street, Suite 200
Williamsville, NY 14221

P 716.634.0700

TF 800.546.7556
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT F716.634.0764

w EFPRgroup.com

The Governing Board
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
(the Authority), as of and for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority, as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 2(v) to the financial statements, the Authority adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 - “Leases” during the year
ended March 31, 2023. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audits.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied



certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
10, 2023 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

EFPR Gruoup, ChAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
November 10, 2023



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2023 and 2022

This annual report consists of three parts:

e Management’s Discussion and Analysis
e Basic Financial Statements
¢ Required Supplementary Information

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 1950, Governor Thomas E. Dewey signed a bill (Article 3, Title 8) creating the Ogdensburg Bridge
Authority. Legislation in 1958 (Article 6, Title 3) created the Ogdensburg Port Authority. The two
Authorities were combined into the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (OBPA) in 1961 (Article
3, Title 8). Today, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority manage $105 million in assets
including the following holdings:

The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge

The Port of Ogdensburg

The Ogdensburg International Airport (OGS)

The Ogdensburg Border Station

Commerce Park Campus/Heavy Industrial Park (Foreign Trade Zone 110)
New York and Ogdensburg Railway: a short-line railroad

Each entity operates according to the Authority’s central mission:

While remaining self-sustaining, the Authority creates sound economic business development through
the promotion of buildings and river, road, rail, and air transportation. This is accomplished by
providing exceptional customer service, safe and secure facilities, good environmental stewardship,
and focused professionalism.

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to impact the OBPA in a variety of ways and varying levels
of significance:

e The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge provides a vital link to economic markets in
the U.S. and Canada. In the year prior to the pandemic, the bridge handled in excess of
655,000 vehicles. During the first year of the pandemic, the OBPA experienced a 78.84%
drop in overall bridge traffic due to the border between the U.S. and Canada closed to all but
essential and commercial traffic. Traffic is rebounding as a result of the majority of
restrictions being lifted and the major repairs to the bridge completed. Currently, the only
restriction left to enter the U.S. from Canada is that non U.S.-citizens must be able to prove
that they have been vaccinated. That final restriction was lifted in May 2023. Vehicle traffic
has recovered to between 75% to 80% of pre-COVID numbers.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The bridge improvements completed the fall of 2021 have been a crucial step forward in the
critical capital rehabilitation needed to secure the bridge's future and the continued support of
the regional economy. The Authority continues to advocate with state and federal officials to
acquire the funding for the rehabilitation.

e The Port of Ogdensburg continues to handle the inflow of products to the region. Grain and
salt shipments; and storage of these commodities have remained strong during this past year.
A very brisk fall and winter unloading, storing, and shipping out of salt for road contracts has
kept the Port active. In conjunction with the Port's private partner, Ogdensburg Marketing
and Logistics Company, three Wind Turbine Projects were completed during the 2022-2023
fiscal year. Additional projects, including a steel storage and shipping project, have increased
Port visibility and revenue in this fiscal year.

o The Ogdensburg International Airport (OGS) experienced the departure of its EAS partner,
SkyWest Airlines. SkyWest remained the air carrier for OGS until Contour Airlines, an
AEAS (Alternative Essential Air Service) airline began service on July 1, 2022. Contour, a
code share partner with American Airlines, flies to Philadelphia International Airport from
which passengers can fly to over seventy (70) domestic and international destination.

* American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds were awarded to OGS to continue to support
airport operations. Through the reimbursement plans of both the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security (CARES) Act and Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental
Appropriations (CRRSA) and now ARPA, OGS has been able to maintain its normal
operations on the commercial and FBO sides of the airport while maintaining the
cleaning/disinfecting regimen required to have a safe environment for passengers and airport
staff.

e New York and Ogdensburg Railway shipments remains strong bringing service from the Port
to the greater North Country region and beyond. Railway traffic increases can be attributed
to both volume growth from existing clients and new accounts to the rail line. Bridge rehab
to two bridges continues bringing their capacity to the 286,000 Ibs. standard for rail freight to
ensure commercial success into the future.

OUTLOOK

Subsequent to year end, the Authority incurred additional expenses which will cause the Authority to
operate at a deficit. The Authority has begun to take steps to defer various projects in order to be able
to maintain its primary operations. Additionally, the Authority has scheduled meetings with New
York State beginning on September 25, 2023 in order to discuss a possible Operational Stabilization
Funding package.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Future job creation through the use of Authority assets and financial stability will remain the driving
focus of the Authority.

Jobs create economic growth, increased relevance, and expansion of key partnerships. Capitalizing
on anticipated airport growth with a new and innovative approach is essential. OBPA’s partnership
with the Ogdensburg Marketing and Logistics Company will continue to open new opportunities for
the Authority at the Marine Terminal. Additional public-private partnerships will be pursued where
suitable to directly create private sector jobs.

Accounting management and increased Finance Committee engagement continues as lack of
resources threaten overall visions. As the Authority’s reserves were intentionally depleted in support
of the airport expansion project at OGS, it remains a priority of the Authority to regain a solid financial
footing; and to continue its capital projects which can both offer employment to the residents of the
North Country area and bring services to the area.

COVID-19 has compromised plans to increase revenue from bridge traffic and airport utilization in
the short term. The opening of the border, and relaxing and/or lifting of travel restrictions will have
a direct impact on the future revenue of the bridge and the airport.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to served as an introduction to the Authority’s basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of four components:

Statements of Net Position

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

The Statements of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows at a certain date, with the difference between the four
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how
the Authority’s net position changed during a period of time. These changes are recorded on the
accrual basis of accounting, as more fully described in the notes to financial statements.

The Statements of Cash Flows reconciles the Authority’s operating loss as reported on the accrual
basis of accounting with the net cash provided by (used in) operating, non-capital financing, capital
financing, and investing activities.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is an integral part of the
financial statements taken as a whole.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position. As of
March 31, 2023 and 2022, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $74,171,678 and $70,567,408, respectively.

The Authority’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net
results of activities, the valuation of certain assets and liabilities, the acquisition and payment of debt,
the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

The following table presents a summary of the Authority’s financial position as of March 31, 2023,
2022 and 2021:

2023 2022 2021

Current assets $ 9,341,370 8,311,936 1,146,622
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 94,776,992 99,277,423 95,332,430
Other noncurrent assets 16,920,867 17.719.370 841.049

Total assets 121,039,229 125.308.729  97.320.101
Deferred outflows of resources 1.323.916 2.039.205 1,492.959
Current liabilities 3,105,932 9,557,816 4,475,528
Noncurrent liabilities 27.648970 28.514.493  31.330.443

Total liabilities 30,754,902 38.072.309 35.805.971
Deferred inflows of resources 17,436,565 18.708.217 103,105
Net position $ 74,171,678 _70,567,408 62.903.984

* Restated for implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.

Changes in the Authority’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years ended March 31, 2023,

2022 and 2021:
2023 2022%* 2021

Operating revenue $ 9,679,088 6,112,071 5,997,734
Operating expenses 16,513,191 9,736,039 11.285919
Operating loss (6,834,103)  (3,623,968) (5,288,185)
Nonoperating income (expense) 10.438.373 9,942,196 15.257.202
Change in net position 3,604,270 6,318,228 9,969,017
Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated 70,567,408 62,903,984 52,934,967
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - 1.345.196 -
Net position at the beginning of year, as restated 70.567.408 64.249.180 52.934.967
Net position at end of year $74.171.678 70,567,408 62,903,984

* Restated for implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
7



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Operating revenue in fiscal year 2022-2023 increased 58%, enhanced by the increase in bridge traffic.
Operating revenue in fiscal year 2021 - 2022 increased 2%. Operating expenditures in fiscal year
2022 - 2023 increased 70% primarily attributed to an increase in professional fees and salaries and
wages whereas operating expenditures decreased 14% in 2021 - 2022. Nonoperating expenses
increased significantly due to recording the return of funds to New York State Department of
Transportation that were intended for the harbor deepening project and cash being received back.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following table is an analysis of the Authority’s capital assets as of March 31, 2023, 2022 and
2021:

2023 2022* 2021
Original cost $ 166,444,818 165,764,000 145,221,437
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (75.469.154) (70.715.865) (66,010,509)
90,975,664 95,048,135 79,210,928
Construction in progress 3.801.328 4,229,288 16,121,502
Total capital assets $ 94776992 99,277,423 _95.332.430

* Restated for implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
LONG-TERM DEBT

The following table is an analysis of long-term debt as of March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021:

2023 2022* 2021

Advances due to State of New York $ 18,629,974 18,629,974 18,629,974
Bonds payable 5,906,034 5,996,423 6,089,118
Notes payable 2,979,346 3,678,576 3,804,783
Capital lease obligations 71,596 138,190 39,920
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 1,289,684 1,351,912 2,187,156
Net pension liability - 7,360 1,621,056
Lease and escrow deposits 174.631 137.151 157,587
29,051,265 29,939,586 32,529,594

Less current portion (1,402.295) (1.425.093) (1.199.151)
Total long-term debt $27.648970 28,514,493 31,330,443

* Restated for implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
CONTACT INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the Authority’s
finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Ogdensburg Bridge
and Authority at One Bridge Plaza, Ogdensburg, New York 13669.

8



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Statements of Net Position
March 31, 2023 and 2022

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2022
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 2023 (As restated)
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents 6,809,275 517,881
Accounts receivable 955,715 995,794
Grants receivable 50,709 6,028,642
Lease receivable 1,365,363 668,201
Inventories 80,316 69,827
Prepaid expenses 79,992 31,591
Total current assets 9,341,370 8,311,936
Noncurrent assets:
Compensating balance 227,973 353,303
Lease receivable 15,276,124 16,645,063
Security deposits 185,233 7,369
Bond payment reserve 220,275 213,819
Debt service reserve 511,027 499,816
Net pension asset - proportionate share 500,235 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 94,776,992 99,277,423
Total noncurrent assets 111,697,859 116,996,793
Total assets 121,039,229 125,308,729
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension 1,195,643 1,890,950
OPEB 128,273 148,255
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,323,916 2,039,205
(Continued)



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Line of credit
Accrued vacation compensation
Current portion of due to State of New York
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of capital lease obligation

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease and escrow deposits
Postemployment benefits other than pensions
Net pension liability - proportionate share
Due to State of New York, excluding current portion
Bonds payable, excluding current portion
Notes payable, excluding current portion
Capital lease obligation, excluding current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension
Lease
OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2022

2023 (As restated)
1,280,447 7,076,406
87,472 99,120
187,483 835,173
148,235 122,024
675,000 600,000
102,695 97,695
565,430 660,804
59,170 66,594
3,105,932 9,557,816
174,631 137,151
1,289,684 1,351,912
- 7,360
17,954,974 18,029,974
5,803,339 5,898,728
2,413,916 3,017,772
12,426 71,596
27,648,970 28,514,493
30,754,902 38,072,309
1,806,980 2,151,874
14,924,138 15,750,691
705,447 805,652
17,436,565 18,708,217
67,002,559 69,999,087
959,275 1,066,938
6,209,844 (498,617)
$ 74,171,678 70,567,408




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

2022
2023 (As restated)

Operating revenue:

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Bridge tolls 2,088,739 1,250,629
Rentals 3,024,222 2,937,383
Port operating fees 4,011,638 1,403,464
Parking revenue 64,977 82,733
Airport fees and services 299,698 355,807
Construction projects 18,331 4,629
Miscellaneous 171,483 77,426
Total operating revenue 9,679,088 6,112,071
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 2,234,866 1,819,342
Payroll taxes and benefits 912,361 875,774
Automotive 185,760 113,673
Building and grounds maintenance 330,558 216,020
Equipment repairs and maintenance 566,854 206,536
Fuel and utilities 241,668 245,960
Parking lot operations 216,157 158,902
Security 255,960 237,471
Insurance 390,242 320,648
Telephone and postage 38,885 38,558
Advertising 209,831 224,128
Professional fees 2,033,263 588,436
Depreciation and amortization 4,753,289 4,559,294
Office supplies 26,416 17,669
Subscriptions and dues 1,705 1,774
Travel and meetings 4,977 2,977
Alternative essential air services program expenses 3,091,766 -
Specialized handling equipment rental 901,437 -
Miscellaneous 117,196 108,877
Total operating expenses 16,513,191 9,736,039

Operating loss (6,834,103) (3,623,968)
(Continued)



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Continued

Nonoperating income (expense):
Federal and State grants
CARES Act - airport grants
Grant income - PPP forgiveness
Gain on sale of assets
Interest income
Loss on foreign currency exchange
Harbor deepening funds receipt (repayment)
Interest expense

Total non-operating income (expense)
Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (note 16)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2022

2023 (As restated)

$ 3,954,177 14,455,968

1,169,647 1,678,500

- 365,545

24,734 115,884

139,461 52
(160,444) (37,336)
5,851,794  (6,021,000)
(540,996) (615,417)
10,438,373 9,942,196

3,604,270 6,318,228
70,567,408 62,903,984

- 1,345,196

70,567,408 64,249,180

$ 74,171,678 70,567,408




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Other payments

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Principal paid on capital debt
Bond payment reserve
Debt service reserve
Capital expenditures
Federal and State grants
Compensating balance
Interest paid on capital debt
Line of credit

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income
Gain on sale of assets
Loss on foreign currency exchange
Proceeds from CARES Act - airport grants

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2022
2023 (As restated)
$ 9,424,007 5,718,549
(2,508,288)  (1,964,702)
(9,528,091)  (4,038,456)
(2,612,372) (284,609)
(856,213) (250,551)
(6,456) (2,539)
(11,211) (59)
(252,858) (8,374,368)
9,932,110 7,943,070
125,330 (228,722)
(552,644) (615,028)
(647,690) (143,503)
7,730,368 (1,671,700)
139,461 52
24,734 115,884
(160,444) (37,336)
1,169,647 1,678,500
1,173,398 1,757,100
6,291,394 (199,209)
517,881 717,090
$ 6,809,275 517,881
(Continued)



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense

Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Lease receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Deferred outflows of resources - pension
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Security deposits
Other postemployment benefits

Net pension liability - proportionate share
Deferred inflows of resources - pension

Deferred inflows of resources - leases

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2022

2023 (As restated)
$ (6,834,103) (3,623,968)

4,753,289 4,559,294
40,079 (153,771)

671,777 1,080,027
(10,489) (19,317)
(48,401) (10,336)
(140,384) (22,374)
695,307 (564,933)
82,046 (655,995)
(142,451) (78,805)
(507,595) (1,613,696)

(344,894) 2,116,669
(826,553) (1,297,404)
$(2,612,372) (284,609)




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023 and 2022

(1) Organization

The Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (the Authority) was created pursuant to the Public
Authorities Law of the State of New York (the State) by an enactment entitled “Ogdensburg
Bridge Authority Act,” on April 18, 1950. The name of the Authority was amended from
“Ogdensburg Bridge Authority” to “Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority” on April 1, 1960.
The Authority is a component unit of the State.

The Authority was created for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining the
international bridge across the St. Lawrence River. The operations of the bridge are accounted
for in the Bridge Fund. The Port Fund operations of the Authority consist of the Ogdensburg
International Airport, Port of Ogdensburg, New York and Ogdensburg Railway, and an
industrial park all of which are accounted for as separate units within that fund.

The reporting entity of the Authority is based on criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14 - “The Financial Reporting Entity.” The financial
reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
accompanying financial statements present the activities of the Authority and its component
unit, the Ogdensburg Border Station, Inc. (the Border Station). The decision to include a
potential component unit in the Authority’s reporting entity is based on several criteria
including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the
application of these criteria the following is a brief description of the component unit included
in the Authority’s reporting entity.

e Blended Component Unit
Ogdensburg Border Station, Inc. - The Border Station was created as a local development
company for the purpose of constructing a new border station for the U.S. Customs
and to issue taxable revenue bonds for financing the cost. The governing body of the
Authority is the same as the governing body of the Border Station. During the year
ended March 31, 2020 the Border Station transferred all net position to the Authority.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is as follows:

(a) Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GASB is the accepted standards
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP for
government entities as prescribed by the GASB as a proprietary fund.

(c) Operating Measure
Operating income reported in the financial statements includes revenue and expenses related
to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenue include
bridge tolls, airport operating fees, building rentals and port operating fees. Principal
operating expenses include the costs of providing these services, administrative expenses
and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenue and expenses are classified as non-
operating in the financial statements.

(d) Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Cash and Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and equivalents includes money market accounts
and any highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less.

() Investments

The investment policy of the Authority stipulates that the Authority may invest in obligations
of the State, the United States government, repurchase agreements, or money market
deposit accounts. Repurchase agreements must be collateralized by obligations
guaranteed by the United States government, which are equal in value to the repurchase
agreement. The agreements shall not exceed sixty days and payment shall be made only
upon delivery of collateral to the Authority’s agent. All investments and related collateral
are held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s name.

(g) Receivables
Accounts receivable are stated at net estimated realizable value by writing off bad debts as
they are determined to be uncollectible. An allowance for bad debts is not considered
material; accordingly, no allowance is maintained.

Grants receivable from Federal and State agencies are recorded at the time the right to receive
such funds occurs.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost on the first-in, first-out method.

(i) Prepaid Expenses
Expenses paid in advance of the period to be benefited are recorded as an asset and are
expensed over the period of time to be benefited.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(1) _Capital Assets

Investments in capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs,
renewals, and improvements, which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets,
are charged to operations when incurred. Infrastructure assets, such as roads and bridges,
are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Grants received
from other governmental agencies to partially finance capital projects are shown as grant
income and are not offset against the cost of the facilities. Donated facilities are shown at
estimated fair market value at the date of acquisition. Effective for the year ended March
31, 2002, the Authority changed its depreciation policy to record depreciation on
infrastructure assets in order to conform with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34.
The Authority’s capital asset policy defines capitalization of an expenditure when the
dollar amount exceeds $2,500.

The straight-line method of depreciation is generally used for capital assets, based on their
estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital
assets are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 50 years
Improvements/infrastructure 10 - 50 years
Bridge 50 - 100 years
Vehicles and equipment 3 -20 years
Right-to-use asset 4 - 5 years

(k) Real Estate Sales
The Authority accounts for real estate sales under the accrual method when certain criteria are
met. Under the accrual method, profit or loss is recognized when a sale transaction has
been consummated.

(1) Foreign Currency Translation

The Authority translates Canadian assets and liabilities to U.S. currency at rates of exchange
in effect at the financial statement date. Expense items are translated at average exchange
rates prevailing during the reporting period. Revenue is converted on a daily basis.

(m) Retirement Benefits
The Authority provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its regular full-time
employees through contributions to the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement
System (the System). The System provides various plans and options, some of which
require employee contributions.

(n) Compensated Absences
Union employees and management/confidential employees are allowed to accumulate earned
sick time up to a maximum of 160 days and 200 days, respectively. Vacation time earned
as of an employee’s anniversary date in excess of 30 days may not be carried forward.
Upon termination, unused sick leave may be credited toward retirement and/or health
benefits, while vacation time will be paid to the employee.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
(n) Compensated Absences. Continued

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the liabilities for accrued vacation leave amounted to
$148,235 and $122,024, respectively.

(0) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
In addition to providing the retirement benefits described in note 2(m), the Authority provides
postemployment health insurance coverage to its retired employees and their survivors.
The payment of this benefit is not governed by any employment contract and is done at
the discretion of the members of the Board of the Authority.

The Authority pays a substantial portion of the cost of premiums to an insurance company
which provides health care insurance. The Authority will pay 75% of health insurance
premiums for current and future retirees with 20 years of active service until age 65. The
Authority will not reimburse retirees for the cost of Medicare.

(p) Unearned Revenue and Revenue Recognition
The Authority recognizes revenue when earned. Revenue associated with cash receipts
received in advance from rental operations is deferred until the month they are earned.

(q) Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred and amounted to $209,831 and
$224,128 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(r) Pollution Remediation Obligations
In accordance with the GASB Statement No. 49 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations,” management has concluded that no obligating event
has occurred that would require recognition of a future pollution remediation obligation
in the accompanying financial statements.

(s) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Authority has three items that qualify for reporting in this category. The
first item is related to the pension reported in the statements of net position. This
represents the effect of the net change in the Authority’s proportion of the collective net
pension asset or liability and difference during the measurement period between the
Authority’s contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the pension
system not included in pension expense. The second item is the Authority contributions
to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date. The third item is for OPEB
and relates to the estimated net contributions subsequent to the measurement date as well
as changes of assumptions.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(s) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, Continued

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The Authority has three items that qualifies for reporting in this category. The first item
is related to the pension and represents changes in the Authority’s proportion of the
collective net pension liability (ERS System) and difference during the measurement
periods between the Authority’s contributions and its proportion share of total
contributions to the pension system not included in pension expense. The second item is
related to OPEB, the Authority has two items that qualify for reporting on this category;
the first represents the difference between actual and expected experience, and the second
represents the changes of assumptions or other inputs. The third item is related to long-
term lease revenue.

(t) Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements
GASB has issued the following pronouncements which will be implemented in the years
required. The effects of the implementation of these pronouncements are not known at this
time.

Statement No. 94 - Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements. Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022.

Statement No. 99 - Omnibus 2022. Effective for various periods through fiscal years
beginning after June 30, 2023.

Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences. Effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023.

(u) Subsequent Events
The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end, the Authority incurred additional expenses which will cause the
Authority to operate at a deficit. The Authority has begun to take steps to defer various
projects in order to be able to maintain its primary operations. Additionally, the Authority
has scheduled meetings with New York State beginning on September 25, 2023 in order
to discuss a possible Operational Stabilization Funding package.

(v) Recent Accounting Standards Adopted
For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 87 -

“Leases.” This Statement provides guidance for identifying certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows or outflows based on payment provisions of the contract. These financial
statements and notes reflect the adoption of this new Standard.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Cash and Investments

The Authority’s investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, the Authority has
its own written investment policy. The Authority’s monies must be deposited in Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust companies located
within the State. The chief financial officer is authorized to use demand and time accounts
and certificates of deposit. Permissible instruments include U.S. treasury bills. Collateral is
required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not covered
by FDIC insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United
States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities and school districts.

Deposits are valued at cost or cost plus interest and are categorized as either: (1) insured, (2) held
by the financial institution’s trust department or agency in the Authority’s name, or (3)
uncollateralized.

Total financial institution (bank) balances at March 31, 2023 and 2022 were $7,942,674 and
$1,635,437, respectively. These deposits are categorized as follows:

1 2 3
2023 $ 938357 7.004.317 -
2022 $ 500.000 676,748 458,689

In compliance with State regulations for bridge and port authorities, the expenditure of revenue
must be authorized by the Comptroller of the State. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Authority had $89,770 and $174,951, respectively, in demand deposit accounts subject to
State authorization. In addition, the Authority was authorized to establish revolving checking
and savings accounts to enable the Authority to process its own checks subject to post audit
by the State. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority had $29,637 and $54,037,
respectively, in revolving checking and savings accounts for this purpose.

The bond payment reserve represents funds held in a separate deposit account in the custody of
the trustee of the Series 2017 bonds in the amount of $220,275 and $213,819 as of March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The debt service reserve represents funds in a separate deposit account in the custody of the trustee
of the Series 2017 bonds in the amount of $511,027 and $499,816 as of March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(4) Lease Receivable

The Authority has executed multiple lease agreements for buildings and spaces. The Authority
implemented GASB Statement No. 87 for the year ended March 31, 2023 and used the
payment schedules for those leases reportable under GASB Statement No. 87 to measure the
lease receivable. Calculations pursuant to GASB Statement No. 87 require an interest rate
assumption for discounting of future lease payments. The interest rates averaged at 3.94%
annually, depending on the commencement date and length of each lease.

The following is the amortization schedule for the lease receivables:

Year ending Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 1,365,363 608,632 1,973,995
2025 1,364,046 557,550 1,921,596
2026 1,301,157 508,444 1,809,601
2027 1,167,502 460,498 1,628,000
2028 909,220 421,725 1,330,945

2029 - 2033 4,236,619 1,614,150 5,850,769
2034 - 2038 5,142,368 726,691 5,869,059
2039 1.155.212 23,738 1.178.950
Total $ 16.641.487 4921428 21.562915
The following is the amortization schedule for the deferred inflows of resources:

Year ending Revenue
2024 $ 1,446,712
2025 1,361,807
2026 1,286,841
2027 1,150,700
2028 946,355

2029 - 2033 4,029,048
2034 - 2038 3,919,471
2039 783.204
Total $ 14,924,138
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets

Capital assets for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Captital assets, not being depreciated
or amortized:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated or amortized

Capital assets, being depreciated
and amortized:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Right-to-use asset

Total capital assets being
depreciated and amortized

Less accummulated depreciation and
amortization for;
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Right-to-use asset

Total accunulated depreciation
and amortization

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
April 1, March 31,
2022 Increase Decrease 2023
$ 4,147,688 - (537) 4,147,151
4,229,288 307,827 (735,787) 3,801,328
8,376,976 307,827 (736,324) 7,948,479
42,526,965 - - 42,526,965
108,711,471 - - 108,711,471
10,101,895 681,355 - 10,783,250
275,981 - - 275,981
161,616,312 681,355 - 162,297,667
(17,512,038) (1,717,241) - (19,229,279)
(45,498,292) (2,379,906) - (47,878,198)
(7,559,473) (597,819) - (8,157,292)
(146,062) (58,323) - (204,385)
(70,715,865) (4,753,289) - (75,469,154)
90,900,447 (4,071,934) - 86,828,513
$99,277,423 (3,764,107) (736,324) 94,776,992
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets. Continued

Capital assets, not being depreciated
or amortized:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated or amortized

Capital assets, being depreciated and
amortized:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Right-to-use asset

Total capital assets being
depreciated and amortized

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization for:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Right-to-use asset

Total accumulated depreciation

and amortization

Total capital assets, being

depreciated and amortization,

net

Total capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
April 1, March 31,
2021* Increase Decrease 2022
$ 4,151,803 - 4,115) 4,147,688
16,121,502 14,322,153 (26,214,367) 4,229,288
20,273,305 14,322,153 (26,218,482) 8,376,976
42,526,965 - - 42,526,965
89,277,646 19,458,325 (24,500) 108,711,471
9,265,021 836,874 - 10,101,895
275,981 - - 275,981
141,345,613 20,295,199 (24,500) 161,616,312
(15,728,879) (1,783,159) - (17,512,038)
(43,222,646) (2,275,646) - (45,498,292)
(7,058,985) (500,488) - (7,559,473)
(89,894) (56,168) - (146,062)
(66,100,404) (4,615,461) - (70,715,865)
75,245,209 15,679,738 (24,500) 90,900,447
$95,518,514 30,001,891 (26,242,982) 99,277,423

* Restated for implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Donated Property

On January 31, 2011, the Authority received title to a building from Sanmina-SCI Corporation in
partial satisfaction of a lease termination fee. The building was recorded at its estimated fair
value of $750,000, as determined by an independent appraisal and the Authority on the date
of transfer.

On December 26, 1974, the Authority received from the St. Regis Paper Company, all of the line
of railroad extending from Norwood, New York to Waddington, New York, known as the
Norwood & St. Lawrence Railroad, and its related assets. The railroad was recorded at its
estimated fair value as determined by the Authority on the date of transfer, of $783,022, which
was the original cost on the books of St. Regis Paper Company.

(7) Construction in Progress

Construction in progress at March 31, 2023 and 2022 consists of the following:

2023 2022
Marine harbor deepening project $§ 755,208 1,421,796
Airport lighting system 1,945,195 1,860,034
Airport master plan 216,507 216,507
Airport water project 214,712 214,712
Railroad bridge rehabilitation 100,004 100,004
Revitalization 69,874 -
Airport improvement program 46,100 -
Airport drainage project 453.728 416.235

$ 3.801,328 4,229,288

At March 31, 2022, a receivable for $6,021,000 from the United States Army Corps of Engineers
was recorded due to the harbor deepening project being suspended. At March 31, 2023,
$5,833,000 had been received, the remaining portion has been spent by the Army Corps of
Engineers, and no further receivable will be collected by the Authority.

(8) Line of Credit

Effective December 31, 2017 the Authority entered into a line of credit agreement providing
available borrowings of $1,000,000 for specific capital projects. Outstanding borrowings bear
interest at 3.1875% and are collateralized by the Authority’s assets. The total amount
outstanding at March 31, 2022 for this agreement was $220,000. The line of credit was fully
paid off as of March 31, 2023.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Line of Credit, Continued

Effective December 22, 2020 the Authority entered into a line of credit agreement providing
available borrowings up to $2,000,000 to provide working capital for the bridge painting
project. Outstanding borrowings bear interest at 4.375% and are not collateralized. The
Authority does not have direct access to the line of credit. The Authority submits
documentation to the bank who in turn makes a payment directly to the vendor.
Simultaneously, documentation is also submitted to the State for direct reimbursement. At
March 31, 2022 the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $615,173. The line of credit
was fully paid off as of March 31, 2023.

Effective August 5, 2022 the Authority entered into a line of credit agreement providing available
borrowings of $400,000 for alternate essential air services. Outstanding borrowings bear
interest at 5.0% and are collateralized by the Authority’s assets. The total amount outstanding
at March 31, 2023 for this agreement was $187,483.

(9) Long-Term Debt

(a) Due to State of New York for First Instance Advances

Amount Amount Amount
Appropriations appropriated advanced repaid Amount due
Chapter 864-1956 $ 15,000,000 15,006,084 3,650,925 11,355,159
Chapter 218-1958 7.000.000 6.690.717 100.000 6.590.717

$22.,000,000 21,696,801 3,750.925 17,945,876
Add - New York State Auditor’s adjustment in 1974 to record first

instance advances to finance port terminal construction cost 684.098
Amount due New York State at March 31, 2023 and 2022 $ 18,629.974

The original debt repayment agreement with the State provided for the payment of net revenue
to the State when monies exceed the sum of $250,000 and $200,000 in the Bridge and Port
Fund comptroller’s cash accounts, respectively. Transfer of monies from the Bridge Fund
to the Port Fund is taken into consideration in determining this amount.

The Authority and the Director of the Budget of the State (Director) entered into a new
agreement during the fiscal year ended March 30, 1980, which increased the dollar limits
to $400,000 in the Bridge Fund and $250,000 in the Port Fund. At such time monies held
in these funds exceeded these limits, the excess was to be deposited into a capital
construction fund in the State Comptroller’s custody. The agreement also provided for an
annual repayment, commencing July 1, 1979, of 50% of gross annual revenue less annual
expenditures approved by the Director for the preceding fiscal year of the Authority as so
certified by an external audit, provided however, that the minimum annual repayment
could not be less than $50,000. This agreement expired on March 31, 1990.
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(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(a) Due to State of New York for First Instance Advances, Continued
A first supplemental agreement was executed on February 25, 1986, which allowed the
Authority to establish a capital improvement account not to exceed $500,000 in the
maintenance undistributed item of both the Bridge Fund and Port Fund budgets. The
monies in these accounts could not be considered when computing the amounts of money
in either fund.

A second supplemental agreement was entered into on May 29, 1995 with the Director. This
agreement superseded all prior agreements with the State and provided that the Authority
was to repay the State an amount of $150,000 on March 31, 1996 and 1997, and $75,000
each year beginning in March 1998 through 2005. This agreement was considered
effective for the period April 1, 1990 through March 31, 2005.

The agreement provided that in addition to the fixed repayment amounts, the Authority was
to pay all monies held in the Bridge Fund in excess of $750,000, provided however, that
monies in the bridge economic development account/capital improvement account up to
$850,000 and the monies in the bridge revolving fund up to $320,000 were not to be
considered. Also, monies held in the Port Fund in excess of $750,000 were to be paid to
the State, provided however, that monies in the port economic development
account/capital improvement account up to $850,000 and that monies in the port revolving
fund up to $300,000 were not to be considered. As of March 31, 2009, the Authority had
not exceeded these cash limits and consequently no additional debt payment was required.

A third supplemental agreement was entered into during the year ended March 31, 2004 which
provided for annual payments of $75,000 for the years ending March 31, 2004 through
March 31, 2009 and provided an emergency deferral of any payment due in the event the
Authority encounters extraordinary financial circumstances.

The State approved the Authority’s request for a loan repayment forbearance on the annual
$75,000 payments that were due on March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 pursuant to the
repayment agreement, to allow the Authority to build up its revenue base and make
overdue capital investments. The $75,000 payments that were due on March 31, 2007,
2008 and 2009 were made by the Authority.

A fourth supplemental agreement was entered into which provides for annual payments of
$75,000 for the years ending March 31, 2010 through March 31, 2014, and provides an
emergency waiver of any payment due in the event the Authority encounters extraordinary
financial circumstances.

A fifth supplemental agreement was entered into in May of 2017 in connection with
improvements to the Authority’s airport facilities and the 2017 bond issuance. The fifth
supplemental agreement provides for annual payments of $75,000 by March 1% of each
year. In the event that the Authority shall encounter extraordinary financial circumstances,
the Authority may request emergency deferral of the payment due. At March 31, 2023
and 2022, $675,000 and $600,000, respectively, was deferred.
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(9) Long-Term Debt. Continued
(b) Total Due to State of New York

2023 2022
Amount due New York State - First Instance Advances $ 18,629,974 18,629,974
Less current portion (675.000) _ (600.000)
Total due to State of New York,
excluding current portion $ 17,954,974 18.029.974
(c) Bonds Payable
The Authority issued tax-exempt revenue bonds date August 1,
2017 in the amount of $6,330,000. These bonds will mature
on July 1, 2047 with interest of 5.75%, The bonds are
secured by a trust indenture with M&T Bank, as trustee, and
by an assignment agreement dated August 1, 2017 which
assigns to the trustee all revenues of the Authority. The
current portion is $102,695 net of amortization of the bond
discount of $14,611. $ 6,085,000 6,190,000
Less unamortized discount (178.966) _(193.577)
Bonds payable including discount 5,906,034 5,996,423
Less current portion, net of amortization
of discount (102.695) _ (97.695)

$ 5,803,339 5.898.728

(d) Notes Payable
Notes payable at March 31, 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

Loan with Mapco Auto Parks, Ltd. with a fixed interest rate of
5.33% in the amount of $350,000. The note is payable in
equal monthly installments of $3,769 with a ten year term.  $§ 145,675 191,931

Loan with Community Bank, N.A. dated December 21, 2018
with a fixed rate of 5.90% in the amount of $200,000. This
loan is secured by real property. The note is payable in
monthly installments of $2,627 with an eight year term. 105,687 130,070

Loan with Tompkins Trust Company dated February 14, 2019
with a fixed rate of 4.84% in the amount of $500,000. The
note is payable in monthly installments of $10,000 with a
five year term. This loan was modified to allow the
suspension of payments for a period of three months. All
loan principal is payable on the original maturity date. - 160,000
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(9) Long-Term Debt. Continued
(d) Notes Payable. Continued

2023 2022

Loan with Tompkins Trust Company dated December 31, 2017
with a fixed rate of 4.08% in the amount of $3,950,000. This
loan is secured by the first lien on the assets of the industrial
park. This loan is payable in monthly installments of
$40,250 with a 10 year term. $ 2,381,489 2,757,428

Loan with Community Bank dated July 27, 2021 with a fixed
rate of 5.25% in the amount of $498,676. This loan is
secured by certain vehicles and equipment. The loan is
payable in monthly installments of $9,486 with a 5 year

term. 346.495 439,147
2,979,346 3,678,576

Less current portion (565.430) _(660.804)

Notes payable, excluding current portion $ 2413916 3.017.772

The Tompkins Trust Company (Tompkins) loan agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants, which among other things require the maintenance of certain financial
covenants. In addition, the loan agreement also requires the Authority to maintain a
compensating cash balance amounting to $250,000 on deposit. The compensating cash
balance at March 31, 2022 was $239,421. The Authority was in compliance with the loan
agreement at the year ended March 31, 2022. As of March 31, 2023, the loan was paid in
full.

(e) Lease Purchase Agreement
Lease purchase agreement with Key Government Finance dated August 1, 2018 with a fixed
interest rate of 4.99% in the amount of $118,432. The agreement is payable in monthly
installments of $2,779 with a four year term. The balance on the lease purchase agreement
at March 31, 2022 was $8,271. The entire balance was paid in full in 2023.
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(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(f) Long-Term Debt Maturities
Long-term debt maturities over the next five years and thereafter as of March 31, 2023 are as

follows:
Due to State
Year ending of New York Bonds Pavable Notes Pavable
March 31 Principal Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 $ 675,000 110,000 354,030 565,430 106,678
2025 75,000 120,000 347,417 591,201 81,242
2026 75,000 125,000 340,374 618,167 55,422
2027 75,000 135,000 332,899 539,960 28,614
2028 75,000 140,000 324,992 418,375 8,535
2029-2033 375,000 850,000 1,488,399 246,213 5,023
2034-2038 375,000 1,120,000 1,206,649 - -
2039-2043 375,000 1,495,000 833,618 - -
2044-2048 375,000 1,990,000 331,872 - -
Thereafter 16,154,974 - - - -
$18,629,974 6,085,000 5,560,250 2,979,346 285,514
Unamortized discount (178,966)

$5,906,034

(g) Capital Lease Obligations
Between 2019 and 2021, the Authority entered into multiple agreements where the Authority
assumed responsibility of commercial loans and the assets that the commercial loans were
used to acquire. The terms of the commercial loans require the Authority to make annual
payments of $56,556, made in monthly increments totaling $5,200, from March 2019
through April 2025. The monthly payments will be made directly to First Citizens Bank
& Trust Company and USB. At the end of the loan term, ownership of the assets will be
transferred fully to the Authority, if the Authority chooses to execute the buy-out option.

Capital lease obligations comprise the following:

Commencement Final Interest Qutstanding at

Description Date Maturity Rate March 31, 2023
Minolta copier 8/11/2019 8/11/2023 3.94% $ __732
Minolta copier 3/30/2021 4/11/2025 3.94% $ 15,200
Wheel loader 5/10/2019 4/10/2024 3.94% $ 55,664
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(9) Long-Term Debt. Continued

(g) Capital Lease Obligations, Continued
Lease liabilities are comprised of the following:

Year ending

March 31 Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 59,170 1,750 60,920
2025 11,794 199 11,993
2026 632 2 634
$ 71,596 1,951 73,547
(10) Pension Plan

(a) General Information and Plan Description

The Authority participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS or the System). This System is a cost sharing, multiple employer, public employee
retirement system. The System offers a wide range of plans and benefits which are related
to years of service and final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and
disability. The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. The net position of the System is held in the New York State Common
Retirement Authority (the Authority), which was established to hold all net assets and
record changes in plan net position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State
of New York serves as the trustee of the Authority and is the administrative head of the
System. System benefits are established under the provision of the New York State
Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate
in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that
pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished
or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. The Authority also participates in the Public Employees; Group Life Insurance
Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is
included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including
information ~ with regard to benefits provided, may be found at
Www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244.
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(10) Pension Plan, Continued

(a) General Information and Plan Description, Continued

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 who generally contribute
3.0 percent of their salary for their entire length of service. Those joining on or after April
1, 2012 are required to contribute between 3 and 6 percent, dependent on salary,
throughout their working careers. In addition, employee contribution rates under ERS tier
VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially
determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based on
salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

(b) Pension Liability (Asset). Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
At March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority reported the following liability (asset) for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability for ERS. The net pension liability (asset)
was measured as of March 31, 2022 and 2021. The total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Authority’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) was based on a projection of the
Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the System relative to the projected
contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. This information was
provided by ERS in reports provided to the Authority.

Actuarial valuation date 4/1/2021 4/1/2020
Net pension liability (asset) $(500,235) 7,360
Authority’s proportion of the Plan’s net

pension liability (asset) 0.0061194% 0.0073913%
Change in proportion since prior measurement date 0.0012719  0.0012696
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(10) Pension Plan. Continued

(b) Pension Liability (Asset). Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension. Continued

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority recognized pension expense of

$49,134 and $223,162, respectively, for ERS. At March 31, 2023 and 2022 the
Authority’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

2023 2022
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of OQutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 37,883 49,137 89,883 -
Changes in assumptions 834,836 14,087 1,353,232 25,522
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 1,638,059 - 2,114,171
Changes in proportion and differences
between the Authority’s contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 114,158 105,697 162,711 12,181
Authority’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 208.766 - 285.124 -
Total $ 1195643 1,806,980 1,890,950 2,151,874

Authority contributions subsequent to the March 31, 2022 measurement date will be

recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset in the System year ending March 31,
2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will

be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending

2024
2025
2026
2027

Total
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(10) Pension Plan, Continued

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (asset) as of the measurement date was determined by using an
actuarial valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward
the total pension liability (asset) to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used
the following actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:
Measurement date March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2021 April 1, 2020

Investment rate of return
(net of investment expense,

including inflation) 5.9% 5.9%
Salary increases 4.4% 4.4%
Inflation 2.7% 2.7%
Cost-of-living 1.4% 1.4%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2020 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on MP-2020. The previous actuarial
valuations as of April 1, 2020 used the same assumptions to measure total pension liability.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2021 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2020.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:
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(c)_Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2022
Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return*

Domestic equity 32.00% 3.30%
International equity 15.00% 5.85%
Private equity 10.00% 6.50%
Real estate 9.00% 5.00%
Opportunistic/ARS 3.00% 4.10%
Credit 4.00% 3.78%
Real assets 3.00% 5.80%
Fixed income 23.00% 0.00%
Cash 1.00% (1.00%)

1 0%

*The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.50%.

(d) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability (asset) was 5.90% for March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore the long term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability (asset).

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to the Discount
Rate Assumption
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 5.90%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage point lower (4.90%) or 1-percentage point higher (6.90%) than the current
rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption  Increase
(4.90%) (5.90%) (6.90%)

Employer’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 1,287,598 (500,235) (1,995,671
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(10) Pension Plan, Continued

(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension liability (asset) of all participating employers
as of the respective valuation dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)
Measurement date 3/31/2022 3/31/2021
Employers’ total pension liability $ 223,875 220,680
Plan net position (232.050) (220.580)
Employers’ net pension liability (asset) $ _(8.175) 100

Ratio of plan net position to the Employers’ total
pension liability (asset) 103.65% 99.95%

(g) Contributions to the Pension Plan

Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 represent the
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2023
and April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2022, respectively, based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements. Retirement
contributions paid to the System for the years ended March 31, 2022 were $208,766 and
$285,124, respectively.

(11) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

(a) Plan Description and Benefits
Total amount charged to operations for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted
to revenue of $55,601 and expenditures of $6,980, respectively. At March 31, 2023 and
2022, the liability for active and retired employers amounted to $1,289,684 and
$1,351,912, respectively.

The number of participants as of April 1, 2022 the last actuarial measurement date, was as

follows:
Active employees 24
Retired employees 10
Total 34

Funding Policy - The Authority currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a
pay-as-you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will
continue. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB
Statement No. 75, paragraph 4.

35



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(11) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued

(b) Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the April 1, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the

measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Salary increases
Discount rate

Healthcare cost trend rates

(c) Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB liability as of beginning of year
Changes for the year:

3.5%
2.73%

6.00% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 3.94%

2023 2022
$ 1,351,912 2,187.156

Service cost 47,052 84,942
Interest on total OPEB liability 31,732 50,527
Differences between actual and expected experience - (679,560)
Changes in assumptions and other inputs (46,227) (198,728)
Benefit payments (85.785) (92.425)
Total changes (53.228) (835.244)

Total OPEB liability as of end of year

$ 1,298,684 1,351,912

(d) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the
Authority’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower (1.73%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.73%) than the current

discount rate;

Total OPEB liability

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(1.73%) (2.73%) (3.73%)

$ 1.405,027 1,298,684 1,200,130

This analysis represents sensitivity of the OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023.
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(11) Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Continued

(e) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Costs Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the
Authority’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current health care cost trend

rate:
1% Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 962.029 1,298,684 1,701,060

This analysis represents sensitivity of the OPEB liability as of March 31, 2023.

(f) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

At March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

2023 2022
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources  Resources Resources  Resources
Differences between actual
and expected $ - 522,764 - 633,692
Changes of assumptions 50,423 182,683 62,470 171,960
Contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 77.850 - 85,785 -
$ 128,273 705.447 148,255 805,652

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending March 31, 2024. Amounts reported as deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending
2024 $ (134,385)
2025 (134,165)
2026 (133,620)
2027 (125,784)
2028 (116,219)
Thereafter (10,851)

$ (655,024)
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(12) Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position consists of the following at March 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Compensating balance requirement $ 227,973 353,303
Bond payment reserve 220,275 213,819
Debt service reserve 511.027 499.816

$ 959275  1.066.938

(13) Contingencies

Financial awards from Federal, State, and local governmental entities in the form of grants are
subject to special audits. Such audits could result in claims against the Authority for
disallowed costs or noncompliance with grantor restrictions. No provision has been made for

any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined
at this date.

Certain claims arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed against the Authority. In
the opinion of management, all such matters are adequately covered by insurance.

(14) CARES Act CRRSA- Airport Grants

During the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Authority received funding from the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA) airport grants amounting to $1,169,647 and $1,678,500,
respectively. The purpose of the funding is to help offset a decline in revenues arising from
diminished airport operations as a result of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency. These
distributions do not need to be repaid to the U.S. government, assuming providers comply
with the terms and conditions.

(15) Fiscal Viability

The Authority has a working capital surplus of $6,235,438 at March 31, 2023 and an operating
loss of $6,834,103 for the year then ended.

During the year ended March 31, 2021 the Authority took on a $2,000,000 Line of Credit with
Tompkins Trust for operating capital for the TIGER Grant Painting and Rehab Project. At
March 31, 2023, the line of credit was fully paid.
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(15) Fiscal Viability, Continued

Management’s plan to address the fiscal liability of the Authority has been severely impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic (see note 2(u)). The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge was
closed to all but essential traffic from the end of March 2020 through August 9, 2021, when
Canada allowed international crossings with restrictions. The United States reopened its
border on November 8, 2021, also with restrictions. Allegiant Air has terminated low cost
carrier service to/from Ogdensburg to Florida. Sky West’s request to terminate its EAS
to/from OGS to BWI was approved with the caveat that new EAS had to be in place prior to
Sky West’s departure. EAS has been secured with the arrival of Contour Airlines on July 1%,

Bridge Traffic: Car and truck traffic on the bridge has recovered to between 75% to 80%
of pre-pandemic levels. In 2023, there was an overall increase in traffic of 131%. The
bridge painting and rehabilitation has been completed this year without interruption to
bridge traffic.

Airport Operations: The Authority is still investigating options to recruit additional
airlines to the airport. AEAS was secured with the arrival of contour.

In the interim, further grants, including American Rescue Plan Act funds, have been
awarded to airports to address airport operational costs. Ogdensburg International Airport
has been able to use these funds to subsidize normal operating costs and cover additional
pandemic required cleaning & disinfecting expenses and signage, etc.

During the year ended Mach 31, 2023, the Authority received an alternative essential air
service program grant for $11,218,457. The program will be in place for a 27 month term
for pubic charter operations. Revenue recorded for this program amounted to $3,091,475
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Marine Terminal: The Port of Ogdensburg received a Wind Turbine Project during its
2022-2023 fiscal year with gross revenue of approximately $3,000,000. In addition to the
Wind Turbine Project, the Port of Ogdensburg has seen an increase in grain storage over
the fiscal year.

(16) Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle

For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 87 -
“Leases.” The implementation of this Statement resulted in reporting certain activities related
to the long-term impact of the Authority’s leases. The Authority’s net position at March 31,
2021 has been restated as follows:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated $ 62,903,984
GASB Statement No. 87 implementation 1,345,196
Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 64.249.180
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(16) Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle, Continued

The implementation of this Statement also resulted in the restatement of balances for the year
ended March 31, 2022. The March 31, 2022 balances were restated as follows:

2022 2022
as previously as
stated Restatement restated
Current assets - leases receivable $ - 668,201 668.201
Noncurrent assets - lease receivable $ - 16,645,063 16.645.063
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation $ 99.147.504 129919 99,277,423
Current portion of capital lease obligation $ 8271 58,323 66,594
Capital lease obligation, excluding current
portion - 71,596 71,596

Deferred inflows of resources - lease rents

- - 15750691 15,750,691
2,720,006 217,377 2,937,383

&H L

Rentals
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Changes in Authority's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Year ended March 31, 2023

Total OPEB liability: 2023 2022 2021 2020
Service cost $ 47,052 84,942 78,382 59,382
Interest on total OPEB liability 31,732 50,527 57,534 82,152
Differences between actual and expected

experience - (679,560) - (89,656)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (46,227) (198,728) 78,650 9,172
Benefit payments (85,785) (92,425) (97,583) (86,744)
Net change in total OPEB liability (53,228) (835,244) 116,983 (25,694)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,351,912 2,187,156 2,070,173 2,095,867
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 1,298,684 1,351,912 2,187,156 2,070,173
Covered payroll $ 1,763,993 2,149,692 2,081,138 2,244,733

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 73.6% 62.9% 105.1% 92.2%

Notes to schedule:

Changes of assumptions - Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes
in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

2023 2022 2021 2020

2.73% 2.34% 2.27% 2.74%
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority should present information for those

years for which information is available.

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75,
paragraph 4.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Year ended March 31, 2023

NYSERS Pension Plan
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Authority's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) 0.0061194% 0.0073913% 0.0061217% 0.0062324% 0.0060744% 0.0056874% 0.0058747%
Authority's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) $ (500,235) 7,360 1,621,056 441,587 196,049 534,399 942,900
Authority's covered payroll $1,781,984 1,904,683 2,081,138 1,973,822 1,797,158 1,793,263 1,577,651
Authority's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered - employee payroll 28.07% 0.39% 77.89% 22.37% 10.91% 29.80% 59.77%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability (asset) 103.65% 99.95% 86.39% 96.27% 98.24% 94.70% 90.70%

Note to schedule

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority should
present information for those years for which information is available.

42



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND AUTHORITY

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Authority's Employer Pension Contributions

Year ended March 31, 2023
NYSERS Pension Plan
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 208,766 285,124 290,190 284,583 263,565 266,194 245,451 265,038 232,880 380,261
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 208,766 285,124 290,190 284,583 263,565 266,194 245,451 265,038 232,880 380,261
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - - - - - -
Authority's covered employee payroll  $ 1,781,984 1,904,683 2,081,138 1,973,822 1,797,158 1,793,263 1,577,651 1,493,593 1,497,450 1,623,317
Contributions as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 11.72% 14.97% 13.94% 14.42% 14.67% 14.84% 15.56% 17.74% 15.55% 23.42%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Governing Board
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023,
and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to

be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Gououp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
November 10, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Governing Board
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Proeram

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority’s (the Authority) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year
ended March 31, 2023. The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of ‘contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Authority’s federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user of the report on compliance about the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Authority’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses
in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Gooup, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
November 10, 2023
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended March 31, 2023

Pass-
Assistance Through Expenditures
Listing  Grantor's Federal to

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title =~ Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation - Direct Award -
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 N/A § 262,843 -

U.S. Department of Transportation - Direct Award -
CARES Act/CRRSA - Airport Improvement

Program 20.106 N/A 1,169,647 -
1,432,490 -
U.S. Department of Transportation - Direct Award -
Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements 20.325 N/A 520,613 -
U.S. Department of Transportation - Direct Award -
Payments for Essential Air Services 20.901 N/A 3,091,475 -
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 5,044,578 -

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended March 31, 2023

(1) Reporting Entity
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) presents the activity
of federal financial assistance programs administered by the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port
Authority (the Authority), an entity as defined in the basic financial statements.

(2) Basis of Accounting

The Schedule is presented on the accrual basis of accounting and the amounts presented are
derived from the Authority’s general ledger. For programs with funding ceilings and caps,
federal expenditures are only recorded and presented in the Schedule up to such amounts.

(3) Indirect Costs

Indirect costs are included in the reported expenditures to the extent such costs are included in the
Federal financial reports used as the source for the data presented. The Authority does use
the 10% de minimis rule.

(4) Matching Costs

Matching costs, i.e., the Authority’s share of certain program costs, are not included in the
Schedule.

(5) Subrecipients

The Authority did not provide any funding to subrecipients during the year ended March 31, 2023.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended March 31, 2023

Part I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements:

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the basic financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Material weakness(es) identified?
2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

4. Material weakness(es) identified?

5. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a) (Uniform Guidance?

7. The Authority’s major programs were:

Name of Federal Program

Payments for Essential Air Services
Airport Improvement Program

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs.

9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Part II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No reportable findings or questioned costs.

Part III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No reportable findings or questioned costs.
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Unmodified
Yes X No
Yes X None
Reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X  None
Reported
Unmodified
Yes X No

Assistance Listing
Number

20.901
20.106

$ 750,000
X Yes No




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended March 31, 2023

Finding 2022-001

Condition and Effect - Approximately $458,000 in Authority funds on deposit were uninsured and
uncollateralized at March 31, 2022. Uninsured and uncollateralized funds are at risk of loss and the
Authority is not in compliance with General Municipal Law.

Status - This finding is considered resolved as all funds are properly insured and collateralized.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
(Ogdensburg International Airport)

Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges
Collected and Expended and Interest Credited

Year ended March 31, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM REQUIRED BY
THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE AUDIT GUIDE FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES

The Governing Board
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority:

Report on Compliance for Passenger Facility Charge Program

Opinion on Passenger Facility Charge Program

We have audited the Ogdensburg International Airport’s (the Airport) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public
Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) (the Guide), for its passenger facility
charge program for the year ended March 31, 2023.

In our opinion, the Airport complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its passenger facility
charge program for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on the Passenger Facility Charge Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit
requirements of the Guide. Our responsibilities under those standards and the Guide are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Airport and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
the passenger facility charge. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Airport’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Airport’s federal programs.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Airport’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Airport’s compliance with the requirements
of the passenger facility charge program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Guide, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Airport’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of the Airport’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses
in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements

of the Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Expended and Interest Credited

We have audited the financial statements of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (the
Authority) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023. We issued our reports thereon dated
November 10, 2023, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s financial statements. The accompanying schedule of passenger facility
charges collected and expended and interest credited is presented for the purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Guide, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of passenger facility
charges collected and expended and interest credited is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.

EFPR Giroup, CPAs, PLLC.

Williamsville, New York
December 29, 2023



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges
Collected and Expended and Interest Credited

Year ended March 31, 2023

Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Interest Credited:

Passenger facility charges collected $ 28,513

Interest credited 6
Total Passenger Facility Charges Collected and

Interest Credited 28.519

Change in unexpended passenger facility charges 28,519

Unexpended passenger facility charges at beginning of year 14,005

Unexpended passenger facility charges at end of year $ 42,524

See accompanying notes to the schedule of passenger facility charges collected and expended and
interest credited.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges
Collected and Expended and Interest Credited

Year ended March 31, 2023

(1) Basis of Accounting

The schedule of passenger facility charges (PFC) collected and expended and interest credited is
prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements, as prescribed or permitted for filing
with the Federal Aviation Administration, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(2) Interest Credited

Interest credited represents interest income allocated to the PFC program (the Program) based on
the ratio of the Program’s cash and investments to the total Ogdensburg International Airport’s
cash and investments.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the Schedule of Passenger
Facility Charges Collected and Expended and Interest Credited

Year ended March 31, 2023

Type of report on PFC compliance

PFC revenue, including any interest earned after such revenue is
remitted to a public agency, is used only to finance the allowable costs
of approved PFC projects at any airport the public agency controls.

PFC revenue was used for approved Airport Improvement Program
(AIP) eligible projects, including airport development projects, airport
planning, terminal development, and noise compatibility planning and
measures.

PFC funds were used as either the local matching share of the allowable
costs for an AIP project, or as supplemental funding for an AIP project.

PFC cash balances are maintained in an interest bearing account or other
interest bearing instruments used by the public agency’s airport capital
fund.

Separate accounting records are maintained for each approved PFC
application.

If PFC revenue remitted to the public agency, plus interest, exceeds the
allowable costs of a project, excess funds were used for approved
projects or retirement of outstanding PFC-financed bonds.

Serving carriers were notified of PFC program actions/changes approved
by the FAA.

Quarterly reports were transmitted to carriers collecting PFC revenues
for the public agency, with a copy to the appropriate FAA Airports
office.

The public agency has in place and utilizes procedures to track air
carrier remittances and reporting, and notifies the carriers of their
obligations when the remittances and reporting are not in compliance.

The Public Agency is in compliance with Assurances 5, 6, 7 and 8.

Project administration is carried out in accordance with Assurance 10.

Unmodified

X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No
X Yes No



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JANUARY 11, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item C. Commerce Park Campus
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with Frank Ralphs. Inc.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 1 with Frank Ralphs, Inc. for 20,000 square feet of
manufacturing space in Building 11 of the Commerce Park Campus that adjusts the original
payment schedule as outlined below:

Rental Amount (%)
Time Period per Square Foot Monthly Annually/Period
11/01/2022-10/31/2023 | $7.10 $11,833.34 $142,000.00
11/01/2023-01/31/2024 | $7.17 $11,951.67 $35,855.01
02/01/2024-12/31/2024 | $4.80 $8,000.00 $88,000.00
01/01/2025-10/31/2026 | $8.58 $14,303.36 $314,673.84

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 1 with Frank Ralphs, Inc. for 20,000 square feet of manufacturing space in

Building 11 of the Commerce Park Campus that adjusts the original payment schedule as outlined
below:

Rental Amount ($)
Time Period per Square Foot Monthly Annually/Period
11/01/2022-10/31/2023 | $7.10 $11,833.34 $142,000.00
11/01/2023-01/31/2024 | $7.17 $11,951.67 $35,855.01
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02/01/2024-12/31/2024 | $4.80 $8,000.00

$88,000.00

01/01/2025-10/31/2026 | $8.58 $14,303.36

$314,673.84

shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY:

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:
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